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common law deals with the subject is evidenced in the ancient
maxim, "In jure, causa proxima,non remota, spectatur." No cases
other than those referred to have been cited by counsel for plaintiff
in his able and ingenious argument, and none others have been
found that have any bearing on the question here considered. Some
of these cases, as has been pointed out, deal with circnmstances
which deprive them of the weight claimed fur them as authority
for the proposition that the bald fact of becoming surety on a bond
of indemnity, without more, makes such surety a co-trespasser. The
one or two others which seem to support this proposition must be
disregarded, in the view taken by, this court of the law. If, then,
the surety, under the circumstances supposed, is not to be held
liable as a co-trespasser, then it follows that one who merely ad-
vises or requests such surety to execute the bond of indemnity can-
not be held. But, even if the proposition referred to, as to the lia-
bility of the surety, were. conceded, and the reasoning of the New
York courts in that regard adopted, it would not follow that one in
the position of the Independence National Bank, the demurrant in
this case, under the circumstances disclosed in the statement of
claim, would be liable as a co-trespasser. The conduct of the
bank, as a cause of the sheriff's action, is too remote to be consid-
ered. No case has been cited or found that holds one in the posi-
tion of the demurrant in this case liable. The court is constrained,
therefore, to sustain the demurrer. Let judgment be entered accord-
ingly.

PATTON v. TEXAS & P. RY. CO.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Fifth Circuit. March 21, 18!)0.)

No. 724.
t. SECOND ApPEAL-LAW OF CASE.

Where a judgment Is reversed, and the case remanded, the opinIon of
the court on the former writ of error is the law of the case, and controlling
on second appeal, unless the evidence on the second trial was materially
different from that on the first trial.

2. INJURY TO EMPLOYE-DEFECTIVE ApPLIANCES.
""hlle a locomotive fireman was descending from a moving engine in a

careful manner, the step turned, owing to its being loose, a.nd he was
thrown to the ground and Injured. The locomotlve had just come in from
a run, during which the step had been safely used several times. The
roundhouse foreman 'at a certaIn point testified that he removed the step
at that place, but he replaced It, or caused It to be replaced, properly, and
that he was sure that the nut fastening the step was screwed up tight.
Held Insufficient to warrant a verdict against defendant railroad company
for negligence.

In Error to the Circuit Court of the United States for the Western
District of Texas.
This cause has once previously been before this court on writ of error. It

was then very fully stated.. 23 U. S. App. 819, 9 C. O. A. 487, and 61 Fed. 259.
'I'he only differences which are claimed to exist between the evidence in the
cause on the former writ of error and the evidence as now brought up on the
present writ 01' error are to be found, on the one band, In the testimony of A.
Stiner, a witness in behalf of the defendant below, which 18 now clalmed by
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the defendant in error to be more strongly in its favor than on the first trial;
and, on the other hand, in the testimony of Alexander Mitchell, a witness for
the defendant below, who is now claimed by the plaintiff in error to have tes-
tified on the second trial in a different manner from that in which he had
testified on the first. The testimony of Stiner, delivered' on the second trial
and found in the record of this cause, is as follows:
"A. Stiner, a witness in behalf of defendant, testified: 'I was the engineer

in charge of engine No. 90 at the time plaintiff, Patton, was hurt, and was
the engineer running that engine for some time before. Alexander Mitchell
was a competent man to inspect engines. His employment at the time the
accident happened was that of foreman at Toyah. The machinist at Toyah
was a man named Young. There was no special inspector or repairer at To-
yah at that time,-any more than the foreman and machinist. It was the
duty of anybody who was controlling the engine to see if anything was wrong.
The machinist should do the work of grinding in the blower, The Chinamen
did the work of putting in the gasket and changing water. The machinist
should do the work of raising the pilot. It is the foreman's business to see
that the machinist did it. When the engine went into Toyah, it was my duty,
as engineer, to report defects in the engine, and repairs to be made. It was
my duty to examine the engine again before it left Toyah, and see whether
or not the repairs called for had been made, and there was no other inspec-
tion upon my part to be made at Toyah before we left there.'
"The witness was asked the following questions: 'Q. The attorney for the

plaintiff has asked you the question whether it was not a part of the duty of
the foreman or machinist not simply to do the repairs pointed out, but to in-
spect the engine itself, generally, and see whether it was in good condition?
A. Yes, sir; it was their duty to look around. Q. If the engineer overlooks any-
thing, they might find it? A. There is times an engineer overlooks something.
They might find it. Q. It is their business to look for it? A. Oh, yes; it is
their business to look. Q. Do you know, as a matter of fact, whether the
step was loose when the engine left Toyah? A. No, sir. Q. Did you examine
the step at Toyah? A. 1 don't know as 1 examined it. 1 got off and on. Q.
Did you examine the step" to find out whether or not it was loose? A. No,
sir; 1 did not pull on it, or anything like that. Q. You don't know whether
it was loose when it left Toyah or not? A. It was not loose when 1 got on
it. The step was not loose when 1 got on it. Q. Did you examine it to see
whether or not it was loose? A. 1 examined it with my foot. Down at
Toyah 1 simply put my foot 'on the step, and got up on the engine. 1 don't
remember the run, exactly, now. 1 used the step at the San }Iartine tank, or
at Prairie, and Van Horn; then again at Blanco and at Hancock; and wheth-
er 1 used it again between Hancock and EI Paso, 1 can't remember.'
"He also testified that the step was not loose when the engine left Toyah,-

that he examined it with his foot,-and explained that he ascertained that it
was not loose, because he got up on the engine, using this step, several times,
as stated above, between Toyah and El Paso, and, while one might get down
from the engine, and not discover it, that, in mounting the engine after oiling,
he came from front of the engine, and grabbed the hand-hold, put his left foot
on this step, and swung his body round to place the right foot in the loop on
the tender."
The testimony of Alexander }litchell, a witness in behalf of the defendant

below, was, on the second trial, as follows: '
"On the 29th and 30th days of November, 1892, 1 was the roundhouse fore-

man of the Texas & Pacific Railway Company at Toyah. The company had
a machinist at Toyah at that time. He was not at the roundhouse on Sunday.
His name was Charley Young. When he was not there, it was my duty to
do the work, to a certain extent,-little jobs. 1 remember the engine 90,
on which the plaintiff Patton was employed, coming in."
"The attorney for the defendant here called the witness' attention to the

report made by the engineer when the engine reached Toyah on the night of
November 29th, viz.: 'Change water, grind in blower, put gasket in front of
blower pipe; and raise pilot, also.' The witness was asked the following
questions: 'Q. 'What did you do to that engine? A. 1 raised the engine in
front, without raising the pilot. Q. 1 mean, did you make the other repairs?
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A; No, sir; r did not. Q. The small repaiI;s? A. sir; I did not. Q. State
what you did. A. I put some clips or glbfl under the'springs to raise the
pilot up. Q. Did you complete the job? A. I did. Q.Dld you do anything
with' the ,part of the engine near the engine step, oIl. the right side? A. In
order to do that, I had the step off, arid jacks under It. Q. On the right side
of the engine? A. Under that side, to hold her up. I had to jack the front
end, up,ln order to do the work, and hold the back end up off the springs. Q.
That is what you did? A. Yes. Q. Did you have anything to do with the
step? A. I had it off. Q. Did you put ,It back there? A. Yes, sir. Q. Did
you put it back properly? A. Yes, sir; I had men working with me to do it.
Q. Did you see it done? A. I seen'it being done. I went into the office and
came out agaili. Q. Did you examine the nut, to see If It was put on right
or not? A. The nut was screwed up tight. Q. The step was screwed up
tight? A. Yes,sir; I am sure it was screwed up tight. It made two hundred
miles. Q. What was the condition of the engine- Was that step in good con-
dition when it left Toyah? A. It left in the morning. Q. When you got
through with in A. When I left the roundhouse the engine was all right.'
"Cross-examination: 'Q. Did you put that jackscrew under the end of the

engine? A. I had it put under. Q. You did? A. Yes; sir. Q. Did you take
the step off? A. I had to have it taken off. Q. You saw it taken off? A.
Yes, sir. Q. You could not take the step off withoutmo'l'ing that nut at the
top? A. No; I would have to take that off to take the step off. Q. Did you
raise the pilot, or not? A. I raised the front end of the engine, and, of course,
that raised the pilot. Q. That is the way you raised it? A. That Is the way
I raised it. Q. Were you there during the whole time the work was being
done about the engine? A. I think I was all the time that the work was beIng
done on the englne,-In and about the office, ahd about the roundhouse.'
"The witness Mitchell also testified that he had the, step put back after

taking out the jackscrew, and that the nut' was screwed back properly, and
that the nut was tight when the engine left the roundhouse at T03'ah. The
witness Mitchell was here asked, by counsel' for plaintiff, if he did not testify
on the former trial of this case, in October, 1893, that the step was not moved
for the purpose of putting the jackscrews under the end M the engine" and
that the nut on the step was not moved while the engine was at Toyah on the
trip mentioned, and that Mr. Young was' a machinist at Toyah at that time;
that it was Sunday, the 30th day of November, 1892, and he (Mitchell), be-
lieving that he was competent to do so, undertook to make the repairs needed
on'the engine himself, and jacked the front part o'f the engine up for the pur-
pose of raising the pilot, and, finding that he could not accomplish the task
of raising the pilot with the force at hand by himself, he did not do the work
necessary to raise the pilot or cowcatcher. The witness replied that he had
no recollection of so testifying. He was then asked if he did not testify on
the former trial of this case that the step mentioned In the evidence, which
turned with the plaintiff, Patton, lITas not moved at all while the engine was
at Toyah on the 30th day of November, 1800, and if he did not testify that the
nut by which this step was fastened was not moved at all on that trip. He
said he had no recollection of so testifying. The witness was then asked the
following questions: 'Q. Did you put the gasket In the pipe? A. I did not.
Q. Did you grind the blower? A. No, sir; I did not. Q. Why did you put
the jackscrew under that end of the engine? A. I could not raise the engine
and fix the engine withouCdoing It. Q. You could not do what you did about
the pilot unless you raised the engine? A. Unless I held the back part ot the
engine up. Q. SO, in doing what you did about the pilot, and in raising the
pilot as you did raise It, you put these jackscrews under the end of the engine
where the step was? A. I had it done. I was there to see it was done. Q.
Were you a machinist then, Mr. Mitchell? A. No, sir; I ain't no machinist;
that is, I never learned the trade. Q. That was a machinist's work you were
trying to do, wasn't it? A. Well, yes; it was .a machinist's work, although I
can'do it.'
"The witness was here aSked if he did not testify on the former trial, in

October, 1893, that to grind in the blower wac a smaIl job, and that he did it,
and that to put gasket in front joint of blower pipe was a very light job, and
he did it. He answered by saying that he bad no recollection of so testifying.
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The plaintiff then Introduced In evidence the 'stenographlc report of the testi-
mony of Alexander )'IitcheIl, taken upon the first trial of this cause, which was
as follows: That he told the Chinamen to get the jackscrews, and under his
direction they placed two jackscrews, one on each side of the front of the en-
gine, and that without any instructions from him they brought and put an-
other jackscrew on the ground near the step; that he was out of the round-
honse five or ten minutes, while the Chinamen were there, and that this jack-
screw near the step was not placed under the engine in a position to elevate
it, and that the step was not moved for the purpose of putting the jackscrews
there, and that the nut on the step was not moved while the engine was at
Toyah on that trip; that Mr. Young was the machinist at Toyah at that time,
and that this was Sunday, the 30th day of November, 1892, and that he (Mitch-
ell), believing that he was competent to do so, undertook to make the repairs
needed'on the engine himself, and jacked the front part of the engine up for
the purpose of raising the pilot, and finding that he could not accomplish the
task of raising the pilot, with the force at hand, by himself, he did not do the
work necessary to raise the pilot or cowcatcher; that to grind in the blower
was a small job, and the witness did this; that to put gasket in front joint of
blower pipe was a very light job, and that this ,vork was also done by the
witness; that to raise the pilot required the witness to jack up the engine,
and put gibs under the spring ends of the engine truck; the engine truck is
near the front end of the engine; that the WItness did not do this, because
it was a pretty big job, and he was doing the work by himself, with the help
of only two Chinamen; that the engine was all right, and ran as well as if
it had been done, except the pilot was a little low."
After the close of the evidence heard upon the second trial of the cause, the

trial judge instructed the jury to return a verdict for the defendant below,
"because there is not sufficient testimony to entitle the plaintiff to recover, and
no evidence showing any negligence on the part of the defendant," to which
instruction the plaintiff below dnly excepted; insisting that the court should
submit the cause to the jury upon the question of negligence raised by the
pleadings and the evidence. The jury thenmpon returned their verdict in favor
of the ,defendant, the Texas & Paeific Hallway Company. E. M. Patton, the
plaintiff below, sued out the present writ of error. The assi;:nlluent of error
complains that the court directed a verdict as stated above. He eontends that
the evidence on the second trial was materially different from the evidence
upon the former trial, and that the evidence tends strongly to sho\I' that the
plaintiff's injuries were received through the negligence of the defendant's
{'mployes at TOyah, in leaving the step attached to the engine in a loose and
unsafe condition, and that said employes were chargell with the duty imposed
by law upon the defendant railway company, of inspecting the engine, and
keeping the various parts of the same in a reasonably safe and good eondition,
and that they negligently failed to perform such duty; that the evidence tends
strongly to show that the step which turned with the pla'intiff, and caused
the injuries he received, was in a loose condition when the engine left Toyah,
and that the engine was not inspected by defendant's machinist at Toyah;
and that, after repairs were made upon the engine at 'I'oyah, the step was neg-
ligentl;v left in a loose and unsafe condition.

Millard Patterson and C. N. Buckler, for plaintiff in error.
P. F. Edwards, P. J. Edwards, andT. J. Freeman, for defendant in

error.
Before McCORMICK, Circuit Judge, and BOARMAN and PAR-

LANGE, District Judges. .

PARLANGE, District Judge, after stating the facts, delivered the
opinion of the conrt.
When this cause was before this court during the November term

of 1893 (23 U. S. App. 319, 9 C. C. A.. 487, and 61 Fed. 259), this
court said, upon a careful examination of the entire evidence;
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"It seems to us that, to state ·the case is sufficient to show that the defend-
ant had not been negligent, and could not justly be held liable. The excep-
tion to the charge of the court, and to the refusal of the requested charge,
having served to bring up, in the bill of exceptions, a full statement of all the
evidence given on the trial, it appears from the face of the record that there
was no evidence to sustain the judgment of the circuit court. It is thus
manifestly erroneous, and must be reversed."
The cause was remanded to the lower court for further proceedings

in oonformity with the opinion of this court. At the close of the
second trial below, the judge directed a verdict in favor of the Texas
& Pacific R.ailway Company, defendant below. The plaintiff below
duly excepted to that action of the trial judge, and he has brought
up all the evidence in the bill of exceptions.
It is clear that the opinion of this court on the former writ of

error is the law of this cause, and is still controlling therein, unless
the evidence on the second trial was materially different from the
evidence on the first trial. This court on the former writ of error
found, substantially, that by uncontradicted evidence the following
facts, among others, were established, viz.: On November 29, 1892,
it became necessary to remove and replace the step in question.
This was done by the engineer and the plaintiff himself. The nut
which fastened th,e step was made tight. It was properly screwed on,
and would not have become loose in a trip from EI Paso to Toyah
and return. The step was not removed at Toyah. The engine left
Toyah at 2 a. m. on the morning of December 1, 1892. During the
return trip to EI Paso, the plaintiff below and the engineer got off
the engine several times, on the right side, while it was standing,
and neither of them noticed any disturbance of the step. When they
reached EI Paso on the return trip, at about 10:30 a. m. on December
1, 1892, they left the engine attached to the train at the depot, botb.
of them getting off the engine on the right side, and using the very
step in question. Neither of them noticed that anything was wrong
with the step. They went to their homes. A few hours afterwards
the plaintiff returned to the engine. It was then in charge of the
employes of the railway company for the purpose of being coaled,
sanded, and cleaned by others than the fireman, and it was thereafter
to be inspected by the machinist. The purpose of the plaintiff in
then returning to the engine was to wipe off parts of the engine,
and to fill the oil cans and lubricators. He was nnt required to,
but permitted, if he chose, to do that work at the time he did it.
It was more convenient to do it while the engine and the oil were
still hot. He would have had ample time after the engine had been
placed in the roundhouse to do his work. While, as already stated,
the engine was in the hands of other employes for the purposes stat-
ed, the plaintiff undertook to do, and proceeded with, his work of
cleaning parts of the engine, and filling the canll and lubricators.
The engine was in motion,-running at the rate of about three or
four miles an hour. It was about to stop, when the plaintiff, it. order
to get out of the way of other employes, and also for the purpose
of getting off at the place where the engine was about to stop,
stepped down backwards off the engine, using the step in question.
The step turned, causing his right foot to fall under the driving wheel
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of the engine, and to be crushed by it. The only change in the evi-
dence upon which the plaintiff in error relies for relief from the
former decision of this court in this cause, and in fact the only
difference in the evidence as heard on the first and on the second
trials,-exeept the evidence of the engineer, Stiner, which is claimed
by the defendant in error to be much stronger in its favor now than on
the previous occasion,-is that Mitchell, the roundhouse foreman at
Toyah, testified on the first trial that he did not remove the step at
Toyah, but that all repairs called for by the engineer were made, and,
in a general way, that the engine, on leaving Toyah, was in good
condition, whereas he testified on the second trial that he did re-
move the step at Toyah, but that he replaced it, or caused it to be
replaced, properly, and that he is sure that the nut "was screwed up
tight." In our opinion, this change in the testimony of Mitchell can-
not affect what was adjudicated by this court on the former writ
of error. This court then found that there was no evidence of neg-
ligence on the part of the defendant railway company for which it
could be made liable. Under the views then expressed by this court,
what evidence of such negligence is there now to be found in the rec-
ord? If either one of Mitchell's statements be true, the plaintiff in
error can derive no benefit from it; for, whether Mitchell did not
take off the step at Toyah, or took it off and replaced it properly, the
case must go against the plaintiff in error, under the views hereto-
fore expressed by this court. If Mitchell, because of his contra-
dictory statements, is unworthy of belief, his evidence should be dis-
regarded and eliminated. But the fact that Mitchell made two con·
tradictory statements-both of which are favorable to the railway
company-cannot be held to be equivalent to, or to supply the place
of, proof of negligence on the part of the railway company, directly
the reverse of either of the contradictory statements. A bare sus-
picion that Mitchell did not properly fasten the step at Toyah, aris-
ing merely from the fact that he made two contradictory statements,
would not have warranted the jury in finding against the railway
company. The uncontradicted facts remain established that the
plaintiff himself assisted in fastening the step at EI Paso; that this
was sufficient to secure the nut for the round trip to Toyah and
back; that the step was used, and was not lo()se, while going and
returning; that after the arrival at EI Paso on the return trip the
step was used by the plaintiff himself, and was only found loose a
few hours afterwards, while the engine was under the control of
other empl()yes of the railway, whose duty it was to coal it, sand it,
and do such other necessary things as might be required, except re-
pairing, and when the engine was to be taken immediately there-
after to the roundhouse, where it was to be inspected, and where it
would, if necessary, have been repaired. On such facts, and under
the views of this court expressed on the first writ of error, the plain-
tiff below could il()t recover. The judgment of the lower court is
affirmed.
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EAST MOLINE CO. v. WEIR PLOW CO.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Seventh Circuit. June 6, 1899.)

No. 551.

1. REVIEW-FAILURE TO AWARD NOMINAl, DAM)\(lES.
A judgment will not be reversed because of an error in failing to award

nominal damages, where, the question of costs is not dependent thereon.
2. BREACH OF CONTHACT-LIQl1IDATED DAMAGES·-PENALTY.

'Where a contract contains a large number of stipulations to be performed,
of varying degrees of importance, and for the breach of some of which the
damages are readily ascertainable, while as to others they are not, a single
sum stipUlated as damages for a breach, and applicable alike to each of the
covenantsrwill be treated as a penalty, and in all ,a,ction for a breach onlythe aetua damages are rec?verable.

In Error to the Circuit Court of the United States for the Southern
Division of the Northern District of Illinois.
This suit was brought by the Weir Plow Company, the defendant in error,

upon the written contract hereinafter fuIlyset out in the findings of fact by
the court below to recover the sum of $50,000 as damages provided for by the
contract for lJ, breach by either party, The defendant answered by counter-
claim, alleging performance of the contract on its part, alleging a breach of the
contract by the plaintiff (defendant in error), and claiming judgment for the
$50,000 as stipula:ted damages. ' No proof 0':1' damages was offered by either party
on the trial, but each party sought to recover from the other the sum of $50,000
as stipulated damages. The finding, as will be seen, i13 in favor of the plaintiff
in error (defendant below) tliat the contract had been kept by it up to the time
plaintiff defaulted, and had been broken by the plaintiff. The error assigned
is that the court erred in not giving damages in favor of the plaintiff in error:
(1) In not giving nominal damages; (2) in not giving judgment in favor of the
defendant for $50,000 as stipulated damageS.
The finding of facts and conClusions of law by the court are as follows:
"The court finds: That the defendant, the East Moline Company, was on

and prior to July 12; 1895, a land company, ownin/.: unimproved lands near the
'Jity of Moline, upon which it was proposed to buildUp a manufacturing town
by to the ,same SOlD€' important manufacturing establishments. That
for this purpose itadvertfsed its willingness to grap.t a parcel of its lands, with
railway and other facilities, ana a money bonus, to some well-known and well-
established company that Would establish its plant at that site. That the Weir
Plow Company, tjjen located atl\lonmouth, Illlnois, agreed to accept such offer.
.A correspondence thereupoll' took place. which resulted in the making, on the
12th of July, 1895, of the

" 'Exhibit Letter E. ]\"0. -'--.

"'Newton 'Woodson, Peoria, Ill.: This agreement, made and entered into
12th day of July, 1895, by and between the East Moline Co., a corporation

organized under the laws of 'Vest Virginia, with its principal office at :Moline,
Ill., party .of the first part. and the Weir Plow Co., of Monmouth, III., a corpo-
ration existing under the laws of the state of Illinois, party of the second part,
witnesseth: Party of the first part, for and in consideration of the covenants
and agreements on the part of the party of the second part hereinafter men-
tioned, hereby covenants, promises, and agrees as follows: That it '''ill donate
and convey, free of incQmbrance, to the party of the seconelpart, that part or
parcel of land lying betweell the C., R. 1. & P. and the C., B. & Q. tracks as
shown on the working plan of the East Moline Co.'s tract, east of Port Byron
Junction, between the Third and Fourth avenues running north and south, said
parcel being on the old Davenport farm, and contaIning nineteen acres, more or
less, less a right of way thirty feet wiele on the northern boundary of said par-
cel, and a right of way sixty feet wide on the south boundary of said parcel, the
same to be described more fully by metes and bounds in deed hereafter. Said party
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of the first part, In addition, agrees to donate as a furtber consideration for the
removal as hereinafter specified, to the party of the second part, fifty thousand
dollars in casb, as follows: $5,000.00 November 1st, lSfJ5, $5.000.00 .January
1st, 1896, $5,000.00 April 1st, 1896, $5,000.00 June 1st, 18UH, $5,000.00 August
1st, 18U6, $5,000.00 ()ctober 1st, 1896, $5,000.00 November 1st, 18U6, $5,000.00
April 1st, 1897, $5,000.00 June 1st, 1897, $5.000.00 August 1st. 1897. It is here-
by expressly agreed that none of the above payments shall be clue or called for
except to pay for 75 of the cost of labor and material then used in the con-
struction of buildings as shown by certificate of architect, until the build-
ings are fully completed, wben full settlement shall be made as per schedule
}lbove. It is hereby agreed that the East :\foline Co. shall, not later than Nov.
lirst. 1896, execute its three promissory notes for the last three amounts herein-
before stated, said notes to bear six per cent. interest from 1st, 18B6, and
not to be used nor discounted in any of the banks of Rock Island, :\Ioline, or
Davenport.

" 'Steam-Railroad Service.
"'Said party of the first part further agrees from and after the date of the

operation of said second party's factory at East Moline that until street-car serv-
ice is provided, as hereinafter specified, it will arrange with steam railroads
running into East Moline (or Port Byron Junction) to run trains as follows:
Leaving Rock Island or Moline so as to arrive at East Moline 5 to 15 minutes
before 7 a. m. Leaving Rock Island or Moline so as to arrive at East Moline
5 to 15 minutes before 1 p. m. Leaving East Moline about 12:15 p. nl., reach-
ing Hock Island. Leaving East Moline about 6:15 p. m., reaching Rock Island.
With such additional trains as may be put on between hours, conditioned that
said trains are to be passenger trains with sufficient capacity to transport work-
men to and from Moline or Hock Island and IDast Moline for the factory pur-
pose of the party of the part, and that the fare for such service, in books
of 25 tickets, shall not exceed 5 cents per fare one way between Moline and
l'last Moline, it being agreed and understood that the party of the first part will,
at as early a date as practicable, endeavor to arrange that all railroads reaching
Port Byron Junction and running passenger trains have such trains stop at
Port Byron Junction to let off and .put on passengers.

" 'Street-Car Service.
" 'Party of the first part agrees that on or before Nov. 1st, 1897, it will have

an electric, or other rapid transit street-car line reaching up to a point opposite
Port Byron .Tundion, and that the fare for such street-car service shall not
('xceed 5 cents from Moline to Port Byron Junction, either way, and that timel)'
sen'ice of said street cars, to correspond and fully equal that of the street cars
above enumerated, shall be furnished with intermediate trips of at least once
every hour.

"'Switching Facilities.
" 'Said party of the first part agrees to procure an agreement from the three

trunk railroads, namely, the C., R. 1. & 1'., the C., B. & Q., and the C., M. &
Bt. P., that snch railroads shall pnt in main switehing tracks to and on the
boundary of the land occupied by the said second party, and that the said
railroads shall each agree to use such switch tracks for in and out bound
frdght on an equal basis, said main switch to be put in immediately on said
second party being ready to commence erecting its buildings.

" "Water Supply.
" 'The partJ' of the first part agrees that it will provide a temporary and suffi-

dent supply of water for the use of the party of the second part for putting up
Hnd operating said plant and snppl,ying boilers and other machinery, and that
within one year from the first day of .Tuly, 1896, said party of the first part
agrees to lay an eight-inch main from the 'boundary of said second party's land
to the Mississippi river, and to erect a pumping station to furnish a permanent
supply of water to the party of the second part for its manufaeturing purposes,
Ht a price not exceeding the ruling price of water at Moline or Rock Island, and
will also permit said second party the free use of said first party's mains until
said pum]Jing station is .in operation. Said first party also agrees to deed to
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said second party perpetual easement for a water pipe from factory of said sec-
ond party to the Mississippi river. .

.. "Lighting Station.
"'It is further agreed that, as soon as the buildings hereinbefore proposed

are erected, that party of the first part will arrange to sllpply a sufficient amount
of electric light, or other satisfactory illuminatit, at ruling rates as furnished by
other companies, for the wants of the party of the second part for streets and
private lighting.
"'In consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinbefore mentioned

by the party of the first part, the party of the second part hereby agrees at
once to prepare plans and specifications for a complete, new, and improved,
and up to date plant, which plans and specifications shall be ready not later
than October 1, 1895, and that contract shall be let and work upon the build-
ings commenced as soon as possible thereafter, and that it will remove its busi-
ness of manufacturing agricultural implements from Monmouth, Illinois, to East
Moline, Illinois, and will erect upon said ground hereinbefore mentioned and
designated substantial brick buildings to cost not less than fifty thousand dol-
lars, said buildings to be completed and erected January 1, 1897, unless deterred
by fires, strikes, or unavoidable accidents. l<'oundations and buildings to the
extent of ten thousand dollars to be put up In the fall of 1895, so as to com-
mence active building operations on March 1, 1896. In addition to the erection
of the buildings as above stated, party of the second part agrees to remove its
machinery now at its factory in Monmouth, Illinois, or such portion as it may
wish to use in its new plant, and to add thereto such new machines as its re-
quirements may demand, for the employment of 300 to 500 it being
agreed and understood that it is the intention of the party of the second part,
and said second party hereby agrees, to remove its manufacturing business from
its present location in Monmouth, Illinois, to East Moline, Illinois, and there-
after conduct such manufacturing business with such enlargements and ad-
ditions as the business of said second party properly pushed may demand.
" 'It is made a part of this agreement that said second party shall keep the

grade of the product of its factory up to the high standard recently attained
under the Kingman management, and that this shall be done by employing
first-class labor and using material, and by adopting modern processes
of manufacture, so that the goods, turned out shall be equal to those of any first-
class factory of like kind in the market; also that the name "East :M:oline, Ill.,"
shall be prominently branded on all of the goods made by said second party;
also that the corporate title of the Weir Plow Co. shall be changed to the "King-
man Plow Co.";aIso that advertising matter shall be printed and the new con-
cern known as the "Kingman Plow Co., late the 'Weir Plow Co.," so as to get
the benefit of both names, and cement the alliance between the factory and
the Kingman jobbing houses as far as possible. The 'Weir Plow Co. and Martin
Kingman and 'Villiam Hanna hereby agree and guaranty that the name
"Weir Plow Co." shall not be used by any ,other corporation, and that no other
plow factory under that name shall occupy the old and abandoned plant at
Monmouth for a term of five years.
" 'Party of the second part agrees that it will at all times give the preference

in letting contracts for buildings and in the purchase of machinery to be used
in the erection of said buildings to contractors, builders, and furnishers of said
machinery in Rock Island county. Said party of the second part hereby agrees
that, in consideration of the agreements herein contained on the part of the
East Co., that said party of tbe second part wlll at all times, in hiring
employes, give the preference to competent persons living on the land owned
or controlled by the East Moline Co. or its grantees, and that the said party
of the second part shall, so far as possible, limit its employment of help to
competent persons living upon land owned or controlled by said East
Co. or its grantees. .
" 'It is further agreed on the part of the party of the second part that in

letting its contracts for bUildings, it will likewise stipulate with the contractor
cbat he shall give like preference to competent persons living on the land of
tbe said East Moline Co. or its grantees.
" 'It is agreed that the party of the second part shall remove its office to
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East Moline from Monmouth, Ill., and locate permanently upon the site and
in the buildings hereinbefore mentioned, on or before Nov. 1, 1896.
.. 'Said party of the second part further agrees to keep said buildings insured

for three-fourths of the!r insurable value, and, in case the plant is destroyed
by fire, to n'build the same, and to continue said business, as soon as such in-
surance on said buildings is adjusted.
.. 'Said party of the second part further agrees to employ in the transaction

of its business upon the premises aforesaid as large a number of employes as the
demand for its goods will warrant, it being expected and understood that it
shall employ at first about the same number of men as it is now employing at
Monmouth, Ill., and to increase the same as the further exigencies of the busi-
ness may warrant; and it also agrees to enlarge and extend its business as a
permanent business in its new location.
.. 'It is agreed by and between the parties hereto, that they shall meet in Chi-

cago within the next week for the purpose of agreeing with said com-
panies upon the location of their several freight depots and union passenger sta-
tion at East Moline, and that, if said visit is made, and does not result in satis-
factory arrangements, said second party shall be at liberty, up to and including
July 20, 1895, to cancel this agreement.
.. 'It is hereby mutually agreed by and between the parties hereto that the

measure of damages for the default of either party to carry out this agr{lement
shall be fifty thousand dollars, less such sums as may have been paid by either
party to the other.
.. 'In witness whereof, the said East )101ine Company has executed the pres-

ents by the signature of its president and secretary, and by its corporate seal,
and the party of the second part has also acknowledged these presents by the
signature of its president and secretary and its corporate seal.'
"That the location and building of the 'Weir Plow Company's works in East

)loline within the time stipulated in the contract was important to the interests
of the East Moline Land Company in its purpose to sell other lots, and procure
other manufacturers, and that this was well known to the parties of the con-
tract, and in mind when the contract was entered into; whereby the court
finds that in respect to the location, plans of the building, the laying of the
foundations of the buildings, and the completion of the same, as provided in
the contract, time was an essential consideration of the contract. The court
finds that the plaintiff employed to draw up said plans one White, then and
afterwards a stockholder in the East )loline Company; that the plans were not
prepared as provided for by the contract, namely, October 1st; that the deed
presented by the defendant for lands was found to need correction and re-
forming, which was done within a couple of weeks after the 1st of October,
1895; and that neither party undertook at the time-October 1st-to take ad-
vantage of the other on their failure to perform the exact details provided for
in the contract. The court finds that the plans in the hands of :1111'. White
were not finished until about the 1st of November; that bids were then re-
ceived, which, in the aggregate, amounted to about $100,000; whereupon the
plans were revised so that the buildings to be erected according thereto, would
not have cost much to exceed, if anything, $50,000. The court finds that the
said plaintiff, upon the corning in of the revised plans, took no immediate bids
in the carrying out of the same, and, on the 12th day of December, 1895, hav-
ing suffered fire at its works at Monmouth, concluded not to commence building
in the fall of 1895. The court finds that the defendant, having full knowledge
of the plaintiff's intention in the premises, elected not to thereupon annul the
contract, but waived its performance within the time originally named, upon
condition that the plans and the bids for the buildings should be so far ad-
vanced during the winter that work might begin early in the spring, not later
than March. The court finds that the plaintiff took no diligent steps to complete
the plans or obtain bids during the winter, or to get the enterprise in such
situation that actual work upon the buildings might begin in :\larch, or the
opening of the spring, but, on the contrary, delayed doing anything until May,
1896. The court finds that thereupon, in May, 1896, a conference was had be-
tween the plaintiff and the defendant, wherein the plaintiff offered to proceed
to erect the buildings, as provided for in the contract, provided the defendant
would waive the delay up to that time; but that the defendant refused to make
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any such waiver, but expressly stated that the plaintiff 'might proceed if it
pleased, the defendant, reserving· the. right to hold the plalntlft' accountable for
the delay; accorl,llng to the letter of the contract. The court finds that the
plaintiff, with full knowledge of this expressed purpose of the defendant, pro-
ceeded thereafter with the plans and' bids, so that In June ground for the build-
ings was broken upon the land previously deeded to them by the defendant,
and proceeded to build until the cost of the structure amounted to about $7.000,
whereupon they called upon the defendant to give them the first $5,000 bonus
provided for in tl)e contract. The court finds that the defendant refused to
advance said bonus, still claiming its right to damage for the delay, whereupon
the plaintiff quit work on the buildings, and nothing more, except such as was
necessary to close the buildings against the weather, has since been done. The
court finds that the defendant, except a few delays in the matter of railway
switches, and water (unsubstantial in themselves, and of no effect in causing
the plaintiff's delay), performed on its part each and all the stipulations of the
contract up to the date when the plaintiff quit work. The court finds that the
plaintiff broke the contract as modified as aforesaid, in a substantial way, in
not making plans and taking bids during the Winter, and in not beginning the
work before June, 189fi, 'l'he court further finds that whatever injury the
defendant suffered in the matter of the sale of its lots, as well as injury to other
prospects, by reason of the plaintiff's failure to complete plans and take bids in
the winter, or lay the foundations for its buildings in March, it is impossible to
ascertain; but the greatest injury in that respect was caused by the delays
in the autumn of 1895. '1'here is no evidence that any consIderable portion of
such damage would have been repaired had the plaintiff proceeded to lay its
foundations for its buildings in March, 1896. The court finds that on the 19th
of August, 1896, the plaintiff wrote to the defendant, among other things, as
follows:

H 'We therefore give you notice, of your default in the carrying out of the
agreement, and in consequence of such default we have the right to elect to
declare said contract forfeited, and void; and we do elect, ,and hereby notify
you that we shall from this time forth consider said contract forfeited, and void,
and have no force or effect, so far as we are concerned. But nevertheless we
have the right to recover from you under the guaranty on said contract what-
ever damages, we may have suffered, to wit, the amount of $50,000. and we
hereby notify you that we have suffered damages to a large amount, largely in
excess of $50,000, and that we shall hold you and your guarantors responsible
for such damages. We hereby notify you that we have expended, in construct-
ing buIldings upon the real estate at East Moline which you have conveyed
to us in the neighborhood of $10,000, and upon repayment to us of the amount
so expended we will be willing, and hereby offer, to convey to you the said
premises, free and clear from all claim or lien incurred by us. Yours, truly,

"'[Signed] The Weir Plow Co.'
"The court further finds that upon the foregoing facts the plaintiff is not en-

titled to recover from, defendant. '.rhecourt further finds that upon the fore-
going facts the defendant is not entitled to recover on its set-off from the plain-
tiff. The court finds the issues on the original case brought by the plaintiff
against the defendant in favor of the de1'endant and against the plaintiff."

E. McGinnis, for plaintiff in error.
W. W. Hammond, for defendant in error.
Before WOODS and JENKINS, Circuit Judges, and BUNN, District

Judge. !

BUNN, District Judge, upon this statement of the case, delivered
the opinion of the court. '
The principal contention in the case is whether the court erred

in not giving judgment for the defendant below for the amount
daimed as stipulated damages. The finding of facts being in favor
of the defendant and against the plaintiff, it seems evident that nom-
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inal damages might hl1vebeen awarded to the defendant upon
counterclaim. The requirement for nominal damages, however,
would be satisfied with a judgment for one cent, and the case might
be reversed for not so awarding, if the rendering of a judgment for
costs had depended thereon. But, so long as judgment for costs was
given in favor of the defendant, we cannot reverse the judgment be-
cause one cent or five cents did not go with the judgment for costs,
as nominal damages. It is presumable, under the circumstances,
that the failure to allow nominal damages with the judgment for
costs was the result of inadvertence. Laubenheimer v. Mann, 19
Wis. 519; Eaton v. Lyman, 30 Wis. 41; Hibbard v. Telegraph Co., 33
Wis. 558; Smith v. Machine Co., 26 Ohio St. 562; Mahoney v. Robbins,
49 Ind. 146; Palmer v. Degan, 58 Minn. 505, 60 N. W. 342.
But on the main question, of giving judgment for the $50,000 pro-

vided for in the contract, we think there was no error. The case is
elearly one coming within the rule long ago laid down by the English
and American courts, that where the agreement secures the perform-
ance 0,1' omission of various acts, together with one or more acts in
respect to which the damages on a breach of the covenants are certain
and readily ascertainable, and there is a sum stipulated as damages
to be paid by each party to the other for a breach of any of the
covenants, such sum is a penalty merely. Astley v. Weldon, 2 Bos.
& P. 346-353; 3 Pars. Cont. (8th Ed.) 161, and cases cited in footnote;
Bagley v. Peddie, 5 Sandf. 192; Trower v. Elder, 77 Ill. 452; Lyman v.
Babcock, 40 Wis. 517.
The supreme court of Illinois, in Trower v. Elder, supra, laid down

the rule as. follows:
"Where there are several covenants or stipUlations in an agreement, the dam-

ages for the nonperformance of some of which are readily ascertainable by a
jury, and the damages for the nonperformance of the others are not measurable
by any exact pecuniary standard, and a sum is named as damages for a breach
of any of the covenants or stipulations, such a is held to be a penalty."

This principle, we think, is fairly applicable to the case at bar.
Here are a great number of stipulations upon the part of either party,
of varying. importance, in regard to· some of which the damages for
nonperformance are readily ascertainable by a court or jury, while
some are clearly of the contrary character, with one general pro-
vision for damages, equally applicable to each and all the various
covenants. Take the one on plaintiff's part, for instance, providing
that the buildings shall be kept insured for three-fourths their insur-
able value. 'l."he damages for a breach of such a stipulation are
readily ascertainable by a court or jury. The Eame rule holds in re-
gard to the provision for employing a certain number of men. Sup-
pose a lesser number than 300 were employed; could it be supposed
that the parties intended that the damages for employing only 275
men at the plant, instead of 300, should be $50,000? There are also
various provisioM on the part of the defendant below, like those in
regard to providing street-car service, water supply, lighting station,
and switching facilities, where the damage could no doubt be sepa-
rately assess€d in case of a breach, and where it would do violence to
suppose that the parties could ever have intended that $50,000 should
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be the stipulated sum to be paid for a breach of anyone of these minoT
provisions. Where there are so many and various separate cove-
nants upon either part to be performed, of varying importance, if the
parties intend to stipulate the same large sUm to be paid upon
any breach, without any regard to the degree of importance it may
have in the general scheme of the parties, certainly they should be
required to make their meaning plain; and, if they do not make it
clear that such was the intent, it is the more reasonable construction
to construe such pr(}visi(}n for damages as a penalty. This leaves
each party free to prove the damages actually sustained. Again,
if the intention in such a case is t(} make the agreed damages apply
t(} some particular main provision of the contrad, and not t(} all, this,
also, should be made manifest by express terms.
In Taylor v. Sandiford, 7 "''heat. 13, Chief Justice Marshall lays

down the rule somewhat more broadly than the subsequent English
and American decisions would warrant, as follows:
"In general, a sum of money In gross, to be paid for the nonperformance of

an agreement, Is considered as a penalty, the legal operation of which is to
cover the damages which the party in whose favor the stipulation is made may
have sustained from the breach of contract by the opposite party."

While that case was, no doubt, correctly decided, the general doc-
trine there laid down does not seem to take proper account of the
cases where it is evident that the damages for a breach would be un-
certain in their nature, and impossible of ascertainment by a jury. In
these cal3es it is entirely proper for the parties to agree upon the
amount of damages, and such agreementR are upheld by, and "are not
iu disfavor in, the courts. In such cases the rule is properly laid
down by the appellate court of Illinois in Burk v. Dunn, 55 Ill. App.
25, as follows:
"When the damages are considerable, are not capable of exact ascertainment,

and rest mainly In estimation, and are based upon matters which are more or
less uncertain, and where there Is no fraud In procuring the contract, the
amount fixed by the parties ought to be the guide for the court."

But we know of no cases recognizing an exception to the rule laid
down as above in Parsons and in Bagley v. Peddie and Trower v.
Elder, where there are various stipulations, under some of which the
damages could be readily estimated, and others not, and where the
provision for damages, as in the case at bar, applies to all alike.
There can be no doubt, if the provision for damages had by agreement
of parties been made to apply only to a main breach on the part of the
plaintiff below in not erecting and completing the plant by a day
certain, the damages for such a breach being entirely uncertain and
speculative in character, that the provision would properly be con-
strued as one for stipulated damages.
The counsel for plaintiff in error has, in his reply brief, contended

for an exception to the rule he thinks applicable to the case, and for
authority quotes from 1 Suth. Dam. § 294, as follows:
"Where an agreement contains several stipulations, differing In importance,

and a sum Is mentioned as liqUidated damages to be paid in case of a breach,
and of such amount as is apparently appropriate to· a total breach, it will be
Intended to fix the damages only for such a breach; and an intention will not
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be imputed to ,make It payable for of willor and unimportant parts, in
the absence of language very clearly ex))resslng it."

But, upon examination of this statement in Sutherland, we find it
wholly unsupported by any authority. The only case cited by him
is Hoaglandv. Segur, 38 N. J. Law, 230, which does not hold to such
a doctrine. On the contrary, the general rule of the English and
American cases, as above given, is distinctly affirmed and followed in
that case. The court even lays down the rule quite as strongly as
the general line of cases would warrant, where it says:
"While the courts have allowed parties to adjust In advance, and stipulate

for damages to be awarded in certain cases for the nonperformance of agree-
ments of this kind, they have adopted certain of construction for deter-
mining where such an adjustment has taken place. The general rule is that
where the agreement contains disconnected stipulations, of various degrees of
importance, the sum named will be considered as a penalty, ,though it is called
'liquidated damages,' unless the agreement specify the particular stipulation or
stipulations to which the liquidated damages are to be conferred. As was said
by Lord Coleridge in Magee v. Lavell, L. R 9 C. P. 115, the courts refuse to
hold themselves bound by the mere use of the words 'liquidated damages,' and
will look at what was considered, in reason, to have been intended by parties
in relation to the subject-matter. The intention must be derived from the whole
agreement, and, if it be doubtful upon the whole agreement whether the sum
named was Intended to be apenalty or liquidated damages, it Will be construed
to be a penalty."
This doctrine was applied by the New Jersey court to the case then

in hand, and the provision in question, so far as it affected the breach,
held in that case to be a penalty. It was as though the defendant in
this case had sued to recover $50,000 as stipulated damages for a
breach of the covenant to keep the buildings insured, or that to keep
300 men in its employ. It was not reasonable to suppose that the
parties iLtended to have the provision for the payment of so large a
sum as stipulated damages to apply to a covenant which prevented the
defendant from receiving money on deposit, which was a minor stipu-
lation of the contract, and held to be included, in and part of the
banking business. In that case, upon the sale of a banking house
by the defendant, it was provided that defendant, after allowing a
reasonable time to close out his business of banking, should not en-
gage in the business again for 10 years, nor receive money on deposit.
And it was stipulated that, if he did continue in the business contrary
to the agreement, he should pay $10,000 as stipulated damages. He
was sued for receiving money on deposit, and it was claimed that the
$10,000 provision related to that stipulation. But the court held
that receiving deposits was a necessary part of the banking business,
which defendant had the right to carryon for a reasonable time until
he could close out the business, and that by a true construction of
the contract the provision for paying $10,000 as damagesonlY,applied
to the stipulation against continuing in the banking business, and.did
not apply to the subordinate provision against receiving, money, on
deposit. And in discussing that question the court used this
gua,ge, which is }fr. Sutherland's only excuse for the principle be has
laid down:
"In every case the parties to such an arrangement are in fact controlled, in

fixing the sum which shall be compensation for nonperformance, by the im-
95F.-17
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portance of the main object and pUrP6$e of the regard to
minor details. An intention to nikke the sum so derermin-e(ton payable on the

of minorr and, PIliruportaIlt llllrts not be imputed,
In the absence of language Intention with preclilion."

) ; .. ; I, " ., :';',,:. i !;, ':,"

,[{'he ease ifilnot by any an authority favorable' to the conten-
tion.of the plaintiff in error. The judgment. of the" circuit court is

In re RICHARDS.'t·, '

(DIstrict :COUMj:w'. D. Wisconsin. June 12, 1899.)
.,' No.-, '00.

, : :. : -., ,:- ·,','.l'U· , '< ,::" ",
1. OF LIENS.

, ,'Where on thl! ptficial PQnd of aD insolvent and defaulting
!he of and reeeived fro);l1

a the amount so
a,nd cat1sedjudgmentto be entered thereon,audexecutipn Issued and leVIed,

tb.ere, i),o,tes Qfthe debtor outstand-
lIlg, "llM fl;ve daYIl"thefe3:ftel; the petition, and
wa,sai'ljuqged ban,Rrupt, levy were void, under
section 67f of the'oankruptcy"act of 1898, anlf'that the property levied on,
or the proceeds of its sale, should go to the trustee in bankruptcy for the
benefit of the geJilllral ot. the ,es,tllte.,

2., SAME-Y ;4ND. IIj"vo¥uNTARY S;"'SEl'!. " ' " , ,
BankruptGY A,c:t 1898,§67f, providIUg ,that liep!l obtained through, legal

proceedings' again'sf 'an' insoivept .debtor "ailiny time within four months
prlorto:the filing of ItpetltlonlnbankihiPfey against him shall be deemed
nulIllJl.!:1i heJs lldjudged:a lJankrupt," is to,'he construed as ap-
plying to"y,olu,ntary, as inaS1ll1,lch !lssection 1, cl.
declares that" 'lI. personag!lip.stw!:lOm a, petition has peen flIed' shall

IndUde a persijJi 'who has flIed li'yoluiltary petition.", ' ' '
i' ! .;.!. . fl.: i'l, ;.

IwBankruptcy. ,,, ,
CUrrter,:for bankrupt.

J: !or ertiditors.
"i': ' ,'I

, BUNN; 'DIstNCt i :,1lidge.Tp.is is,,anapplication by Rich-
ards,'Thth:iias'CajtgHr1and Samuel Treloar to have the proceeds of
the saleof"as'tock ofgo(H's, arho'unting to sum of $1,080.92,
'paid to"tberilby the trustee, to be appliei:} upon a judgment
obtained against said bankrupt. The substan-
tial facts are: that the bankrupt, Richard ,'l'.Richa,rds, having been
electedfn'the '.of '1897 astown treasuiE!'r of. the town of Lin-
den, in Idwacbunty, obtained the consent of Jqhn Richards and
Thomas,0ajo'gill tobecoIlle' his sureties upon an OffiCial bond which
the law required hiJll. to give before entering upon the duties of his
office., He the office for oneyea:r, and itt tMend of his term

be short inhis official accounts, anda defaulter upon
his salq Ibon.d, in the sum of about $1,350.' As, treasurer he had
c()llecte(i the taxes and had paid over the state and county tax:, but
not the town tax. Being unable to pay the same himself, he, got
his said, bondsmen and one Samuel Treloar to pay the amount due
to the town, and, to secure them, he gave them a judgment note
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and real The judgment note was
for $1,400. There were also turned over, as collateral security, one-
half of tbebook accoIlnts beloJl,ging to the .. bankrupt, and a sep-
aratemortgage on the hQmestead given to Samuel Treloar, whose
name,WaBnoton the bond; but who paid in cash $450, being one-
third:of the defalcation. On February 9, 1899, the payees in the
note 'caused judgment 'to be enterediIp against the bankrupt for
the amount of the note unpaid and interest, amounting to $1,137.10,
issued execution thereon, and levied upon his soock of goods. The
sale upon the execution was stayed by the injunctional order of
this The reason one of the petitioners gives for entering up
the judgment and issuing execution is that they had heard that Rich-
ilrd Richards, the bankrupt, had given other judgment notes, and
they'desired to get their judgment first, so that execution might be is'
"Sued and a levy made. At the time ,of the execution of the note,
as well as at the time of entering the judgment, Richard T. Rich·
ards was insolvent, and so known to be by the petitioners, and it
is clear from the testimony that the judgment was entered and
levy made for the purpose of gaining a preferericeover other cred-
itors. A stipulation. has' been filed, in. order to avoid costs, to the
effect that the sheriff who made the levy and the trustee should
jointly sell the property levied upon, and pay the proceeds into this
court. Five days after the entry of the judgment, to wit, on Feb-
ruary 14, 1899, ,Richard T. Richards filed his voluntary in
bankruptcy, arid was duly adjudged a bankrupt. The question is
whether gained a lawful preference by the lien of
this to the proceeds of the sale, or
whether the money should go in equal proportions to the general
creditors. Upon this questi6rllentertain no doubt that the judg-
ment and levy are 'Void under the provisions of the bankrupt law,
and that the money sh'ouldgo ratably to the creditors.
Section 67f of the bankruptcy act of 1898 provides as follows:
"That all levies, judgments, attachments, or other liens, obtained through

legal proceedings against a perSon who is insolvent, at any time within four
months prior to the filing of a petition in bankruptcy against him, shall be
deemed null and void in case he is adjudged a bankrupt, and the property
affected by the levj','judgment, attachment or other lien shall be deemed wholly
discharged and released from the same, and shall pass to the trustee as a part
of the estate of the bankrupt."
\Vithout aid derived from other parts of the law, it would be a

question whether this provision applies to any but involuntary
cases, as it would be awkward to say that in voluntary cases the
petitioner files a petition against himself. Still it is difficult to
.see why congress should make any such distinction between vol·
untary and involuntary cases. The reason for declaring the judg-
ment and levy void would be as cogent in the one case as the other.
But, as it happenfi\, congress has not left this provision open to con-
struction, as it expressly provides in the very first sentence of the
act that the words, "a person against whom a petition has been
filed," shall include a person who ha.s filed a voluntary petition.
This would seem to leave no room for doubt about the validity of
the petitioners' claim to precedence. The contention of counsel
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for the petitioners, p'nt in interrogative form in the brief, is as fol-
lows: i, ': '

r ' ; ,.' f ' " .: ' -', . '., 1:: ': ' ,: ,. _ '. '" I ,.,
'''AssumIng, then, both that Richard!rwas insolvent iurd that the petitioners
knew'H,,"the question is" carl an insolvent borrow money and give a valid se-
curity? Shall advances in good faith to pay debts be protected? Will the court
support securities given by an insolvent upon a bona fide advance of llloney to
pay debts,where the transaction does not in any way injure the bankrupt 01'
lessen bis,estate?" ' ,

questionBmight perhaps be I1nswered by asking another:
a ba,nkrupt law good for,l,one leading object,of whil'h is

to diyipe the insolvent's estate equally between creditors, if OiJe
<:reditqr.i seven months after the law has gone into effect, can ob-
tain' a judgment against the debtor, levy upon and sell his entire
stOck ofgQods, a,nd leave the ofher creditors helpless? Upon equi-

it is, difficult to see what advantage these peti-
tionersshould have (IVeT other creditors. They have never sold
hiW lil,ny goods or put Ii dollar into his business, and two of them,
John;Richards and Thomas Ol:\ygill, in paying, the bankrupt's debt,

obligations. They were held as surety upon
his' o1ficial bond, and, with ,Samuel T'reloar, paid each one-third
th,e amount of the defalcation to discharge the claim. ,of the town
ll,gainst them and the bankrupt ,joiptly and severally. Treloar's
name.»,as DQt on the bond, and a separate mortgage of the bank-
rup't's ,homestead was given to him to secure t4e $450 which he
advanced to pay one;-third of t}1e indebtedness to the town. What
superiorrequity, then, have John Richards Thomas Oaygill
over the .other creditors who sold. Richard T,!Richards the goods
that. enabled him to carryon his business,-perhaps the very goods
which were seized under the execution, and which would have been
sold to pay the petitioners' debt had it noLbeen for the injunc-
tional order issued by this court? If it were a question of su-
perior equities, I cannot see the petitioners have better or
strongerfooting than the other creditors. But it seems quite clear
to me that, under the bankrupt law, these creditors, so far as they
are unsecured, should share pro rata with the other unseeured cred-
itors. The prayer of the petitioners is therefore denied.

In re WOODARD.
(District Court, E. D. North Oarolina. June 28, 1899.)

1. BANKRUPTCY-];XEMPTIONS-HOMESTEAD.
Under Bankruptcy Act 1898, § 6, providing that "this act shall not

affect the allowl\nce to bankrupts of the exemptions which are prescribed
by the state laws in force at the time of the filing. of the petition," the
extent and the duration of a homestead allotment made i.n a court of bank-
ruptcy are the same as prescribed by the law of the state. The bank-
ruptcy actineither enlarges nor diminishes the exemption under the laws
of the .state.

2. SAME.,-AsSETS OF ESTATE-REVERSIONARY· INTEREST IN HOMESTEAD.
Where .the exemptic,)ll law of the state (Const. K. C. art. 10, §§ 2, 3) pro-

vides that every homestead, not excee,ding a certain value, shall be exempt
from sale on execution or other final process, and shall continue exempt


